
 

 

DATE:    October 4, 2019 
 
SOLICITATION NUMBER:  FDLE ITN 710:0268 
 
SOLICITATION TITLE: Florida Department of Law Enforcement Lease Space Needs  

Escambia or Santa Rosa County 
 
REPLY OPENING:   November 19, 2019, 2:00 P.M. E.T. 
 
ADDENDA NUMBER:  Two (2) 
 
 
This addendum serves as notice of responses to questions received prior to and during the Pre-Bid Conference 
on September18, 2019 from potential Vendors relevant to the Invitation to Negotiate (ITN). 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of the ITN remain unchanged. 
 
 

THIS ADDENDUM NOW BECOMES PART OF YOUR REPLY RESPONSE. 
THE ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM SHALL BE SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE, 

DATED AND RETURNED WITH THE REPLY RESPONSE. 
 

ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
COMPANY NAME:  
 

FEDERAL TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:  
 

ADDRESS:  
 

CITY:                                                                                                    STATE:                                    ZIP:  
 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:                                                                  TITLE:  
 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:                                                                                      DATE:  
 

PHONE:                                                                                             EMAIL: 
 
 
FAILURE TO FILE A PROTEST WITHIN THE TIME PRESCRIBED IN FLORIDA STATUTE 120.57(3) OR FAILURE TO FILE A 
BOND OR OTHER SECURITY WITHIN THE TIME ALLOWED FOR FILING A BOND SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF 
PROCEEDINGS UNDER CHAPTER 120 FLORIDA STATUTES.  



Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
ITN 710:0268 – Escambia and Santa Rosa County 
Vendor Questions Posed Prior to and During the  

Pre-Bid Meeting on September 18, 2019 
Written Answers 
October 4, 2019 

 
Question 1:  Please confirm for the Option 1 – an existing building – the Performance 

Bond is not required as implied on page 16 of the ITN.  This appears to add 
an unfair advantage for the new building offeror.  Risk for each type of offer 
do exist? 

Answer 1: A Performance Bond is not required for existing buildings. 
  

Question 2:  Pg 20 of the ITN for non-existing buildings to furnish 100% Performance 
Bond, confirm this is only for the tenant improvement and not the entire 
building as implied  

Answer 2: The Offeror shall submit a performance bond in the amount of 100% of the 
value of the tenant improvements required to complete the project. The 
tenant improvements cost shall be documented by an itemized 
construction cost detail worksheet for the project which has been 
prepared, dated and certified by the Offeror. 

  
Question 3:  Pg 24 Confirm the occupancy move in date of October 1, 2022, does not 

refer to the date of temporary or final certificate of occupancy but the time 
the tenants can start moving in and not actually occupy for actual business 
functions. 

Answer 3:  The Lease Commencement Date is to be October 1, 2022. The proposed 
space is to be made available August 1, 2022 at no costs to FDLE in order 
that they may begin moving some of their existing furniture and equipment 
into the space. It is expected that the Lessor will have the Temporary or 
Permanent Certificate of Occupancy by August 1, 2022.  

Question 4:  Pg 28 of the ITN states 30 spaces in the secured parking area, while on pg 
28 of the program requirement sheet calls for 15 parking spaces 

Answer 4:  The request is for space for 30 vehicles within the Secure Compound (4 of 
which will be covered for over-sized vehicles), plus 2 cages described in 
the ITN. 

Question 5:  Pg 28 states 4 spaces for each 1,000sf, please confirm this is per the 
rentable sq footage and not the overall sq footage of the building or 
buildings? 

Answer 5: Will be addressed within an Addendum to the ITN document.  

Question 6:  Pg 44 references the Tennant Improvement Allowance.  Please confirm the 
$0.40 per sq ft is to be included every year, including the first year as well. 



Answer 6:  Starting in Year One of the Lease, awarded Lessor is to provide $0.40 per 
square foot per year into an escrow account to be utilized for tenant 
improvements at the Agency’s discretion. 

Question 7:  Pg 48, confirm the ornamental metal fence is at the perimeter of the staff 
parking or is the fence to be at the site perimeter or both? 

Answer 7:  At the perimeter of the staff parking. 

Question 8:  What is the number of staff parking to be in the secured area? 

Answer 8:  The projected staff size is about One Hundred Seventy (170) persons 
(includes four (4) spaces for contributors). 

Question 9:  Is the access into the complex secured? 

Answer 9: Secured access to staff parking but open access to the public parking and 
to the main lobby. All exterior doors to the building will require electric 
strikes and card access. The access to the Loading Dock area will also be 
secured by a rolling, motorized gate and with secure card. 

Question 10:  What is the number of visitor parking that is not to be in the secured area? 

Answer 10: Sixty (60) 

Question 11:  Pg 58 Future Expansion – For building purposes now, we assume the 
parking area can be moved if this 6,000sf space is ground level? 

Answer 11: Second floor on the 100% construction documents. If other plans are used, 
the expansion space will be for the Biology Lab. 

Question 12:  Does the proposed floor plan show this future lab area to be ground level 
or on an existing roof structure? 

Answer 12:  Second floor on the roof structure on the 100% construction documents. 

Question 13:  We understand a complete design of the building and site has been 
previously prepared.   

a. What is the total acreage needed for this approach?  Acreage w/ 
dimensions to show what size and shape of site is ideal will be helpful.  
What was the amount of parking spaces proposed in this plan, so ample 
space comparison can be made? 

b. Is the desire to have all the program space into one, two, or three 
buildings? 

c. Would all the buildings need to be connected with covered walkways? 
d. Is the proposed program that has already been devised, the desired 

approach, if so, can the drawings and / or part of the drawings be 
provided prior to the meeting to see if we are interested in utilizing this 
program?  Time is of the essence. 

e. Is this proposed design been done in Revit or some other 3D modeling 
program? 

f. What was the construction budget of the proposed project?  When was 
the budged created?  Can a cost breakdown of the proposed approach 



be provided for some quick analysis to see if the numbers will work for 
the lease?  

g. Is there a chance the agency did pay for the services previously 
provided to where these drawings can be made available to all 
interested parties?   

Answer 13:  a. FDLE estimates that a minimum of 4 acres of buildable land will be 
required in order to build the 100% construction plans and contain all 
parking onsite. A larger parcel may be required if local jurisdictions 
require onsite retention/detention facilities, or if the building is 
redesigned to be only one or two floors. 

 b. The desire is for one building, except for the separate warehouse. 

c. If multiple buildings are proposed, all walkways shall be enclosed, air-
conditioned walkways to connect all but the warehouse. 

d. Plan reviews were scheduled for September 19 and 20, 2019. If 
additional reviews are required, please contact the Tenant Broker. 

  e. No 

f. Provided at the conclusion of this Question and Answer document is the 
100% construction documents cost analysis provided by Culpepper 
Construction in January 18, 2018. This cost analysis document is not a 
part of the formal ITN documents, and its content should not be 
construed as supplementing or modifying any of the ITN documents. 
This document outlines a single company’s broad conceptual overview 
of the project, as envisioned by it, at a specific point in time in the past. 
Each Proposer is solely responsible for its decision(s) regarding 
whether and how to use any information in this document in any way. 

g. Due to the nature of FDLE’s business, the 100% construction documents 
are deemed confidential. The 100% construction documents are  
available, at no cost, to the awarded Offeror, upon written approval by 
Rolland Architecture. However, as stated above the 100% construction 
documents are available for viewing, as provided in section II. C. 

Question 14:  Pg 62 states to provide a chilled and hot water heating system with 75% 
redundancy for the chiller, is the chiller system the only option for the 
HVAC system for the building?  For cost, maintenance, and comfort, there 
are other mechanical system options we would like to consider. 

Answer 14: Chillers are required 

 

Question 15:  Pg 63 Storm Drain Piping states to be cast iron pipe with joint restraints on 
6” and larger pipe.  This is typically not a requirement in Santa Rosa or 
Escambia Counties.  It is likely any existing site the storm will not be done 
in cast iron pipe.   



Answer 15: Cast iron piping is to be used for storm water piping inside the building 
and to a point five feet outside the building. PVC piping is to be used for 
storm water piping outside the building. The actual storm structures and 
piping are to be RCP-reinforced concrete pipe. 

Question 16:  Pg 85 states to provide and maintain 2- bi-fuel generators.  Please confirm 
the fuel usage during emergency operations will be reimbursed to the 
landlord or paid by the agency. 

Answer 16:  Generator fuel reimbursement only applies under a declared State of 
Emergency issued by the Governor and FDLE Commissioner.  All other 
fuel usage will be the responsibility of the awarded Lessor. 

  

Question 17:  Please clarify the layout of the 2 – 20x30 x 8ft chain link fences inside the 
10’ CMU area? 

Answer 17:  Located at the end of the secure compound for storage of confiscated   
crime scene vehicles. 

Question 18:  Are there any criteria for the exterior finishes on the buildings, or is this 
owner option? 

Answer 18: Exterior materials on the 100% construction documents were brick and 
cast stone. Materials must be durable, easily maintained and 
commensurate with the character of a Class A office building. 

Question 19:  Schedule:  with the dates shown w/ responses to questions and the due 
date, doesn’t not leave much time for someone starting from scratch.  Is 
the end date that set in stone, that more time could be given on the 
proposal for one to consider developing a plan that may be less 
expensive?  We feel w/ the market in Pensacola, any cost given a year ago, 
may be hard to achieve. 

Answer 19: FDLE has reviewed the timeline in comparison with recent ITN 
procurements that also allowed for existing building proposals and non-
existing (build-to-suit) proposals at similar size needs.  FDLE determined 
the response timeline is reasonable as it is consistent with such 
procurements.  Scheduled timeline will not be modified at this time.   

Question 20:  If the prepared design’s construction cost is near $40,000,000, it is likely 
the rent could be over $45/sf.  Is this within the state’s budget?  If not, what 
is the proposed budget for rent? 

Answer 20: There is not a defined proposed budget for rent.  Under a competitive 
solicitation, the goal is to achieve the best leasing value to the State.  
Offers will be compared against one another as well as considered based 
on market rates.  The recommended Offeror's pricing will be reviewed with 
the Governor's Budget Office and is subject to legislative budget approval 
as outlined in the State’s standard lease document (page 107 of the ITN, 
Section 18). 

 
 



Questions asked during the Pre-Bid Meeting on 9/18/19 

 

Question 21: Was there a reason for stopping at 9 mile road? 

Answer 21: Boundaries were considered and designed to allow accessibility on and to 
main thoroughfares within the region.  9 Mile Road was determined to be 
the northern boundary in Escambia County that allowed for the 
accessibility that FDLE is seeking.   

Question 22: Confirm the need for 4/1,000 parking spaces and the additional 30 parking 
spaces? 

Answer 22: The agency has determined that a total of 260 parking spaces (including 
ADA spaces) are required. Thirty (30) spaces within the compound, One 
Hundred Seventy (170) for staff parking and Sixty (60) spaces for visitors.  
FDLE will provide an addendum to the ITN for this requirement. 

Question 23: How soon will FDLE provide answers to proposed questions? 

Answer 23: FDLE will make every effort in providing responses as timely as possible. 
Note: some responses may take additional time due to the technicality of 
the question. 

Question 24: What services will be required on August 1, 2022? 

Answer 24: The following services are expected to be completed by August 1, 2022; 
Security Vendor must have all card readers and cameras installed and 
operational and all telephone and technology wiring and IT racks installed. 

Question 25: Would there be a problem with a single story building? 

Answer 25: The offering of a contiguous single-story building does not appear to be a 
problem.  

Question 26: Is a Chiller System required? 

Answer 26: See above answer to question 14. 

Question 27: Is there a cost for the existing construction documents? 

Answer 27: See above answer to question 13 (g). 

Question 28: Is there a preference on locations in downtown? Would that be weighed in 
scoring? 

Answer 28: There is no preference in location, but the proposed location is weighed. 
See page 30 of the ITN for Evaluation Criteria. 

Question 29: Minimum acres – Is less than 4 acres acceptable? 

Answer 29: See above answer to question 13 (a). 

Question 30: What costs to take the drawings to the next step? 

 

 

 



Answer 30: The existing 100% construction documents are available, at no cost, to the 
awarded Offeror, upon written approval by Rolland Architecture.  The 
100% construction plans will require updating to meet the new building 
code. Rolland Architecture will provide all Offerors the same price for this 
service, to include architectural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical, 
information technology, landscape architecture and structural disciplines. 
Costs for changing the building must be borne by the Offeror. Costs for 
civil engineering must be borne by the Offeror and may vary based on the 
specific site requirements. 

Question 31: The square footage reflected in the Program Area Requirements differs 
from the requested square footage within the ITN document and the 100% 
construction documents. 

Answer 31: The 84,000 – 90,000 requested square footage identified within the ITN and 
the 100% construction documents is the Gross square footage, which will 
be addressed within an Addendum to the ITN document. The 65,516 
square footage shown on the Program Area Requirements uses inside 
dimensions and does not include walls, stairs, bathrooms, elevators, etc.  

































































I Attachments 

Culpepper Construction Company, Inc. 

Pensacola Regional Operations Center, FDLE 

100% Construction Document Submittal Review 
January 18, 2018 

Section Six 

Attachments 

Attachment "A" - 100% Construction Document estimate is based on the drawings and 

specifications prepared by Rolland, Delvalle and Bradley, dated November 20, 2017. 

Attachment "B" - 100% Construction Document Casework Matrix 

      Attachments "A" and "B" -  REDACTED

119.071(3)(b)1 and 281.301 Florida Statutes

Page 18 
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